
 

 

 
 

 
 

      
 15 February 2016 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 23 February 2016 
beginning at 
11:00 am 

in 
Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, and Craig  
 County Councillors, House and Kyrle 
 Mr Jackson and Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick 
 Diccon Bright, Area Co-ordinator  
 Hannah Ashworth, Erica Munro and Tim Kelly, Hampshire Cultural Trust  
   
Staff Contact: Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8361 Email: amy.thorne@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes of Meeting held on 10 November 2015    (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
4. Venue Plan    (Pages 15 - 24) 
 
5. Budget Report    (Pages 25 - 28) 
 
6. Schools' Service Update    (Pages 29 - 38) 
 
7. Restoration of Bursledon Windmill    (Pages 39 - 42) 
 
8. Bursledon Windmill Business Plan    (Pages 43 - 46) 
 
9. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 

 
Eastleigh House 

 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 





 

 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 10 November 2015  (9:30 am – 11:50 am) 
 

The meeting was held at the Eastleigh House, Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors House (Chair) and 
Kyrle   
 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors A Broadhurst and Van 
Niekerk 

 
Representing Hamble-Le-Rice Parish Council – Councillor Cross 
 

 Councillor Diane Andrewes - Bursledon Parish Council
 Mr Jackson - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Tim Kelly - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
  Erica Munro              - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
   Tom Quinton - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
 Diccon Bright - Local Area Co-ordinator 

 
Also in attendance – Councillor Gibson – Executive Member for Culture,   
Recreation and Countryside, Hampshire County Council and John Tickle, 
Assistant Director, Hampshire County Council.   
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2015 

were approved as a correct record of that meeting.  
 
2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Curator, Erica Munro, reported that the Windmill’s summer activities 

had been a great success. These events had primarily consisted of public 
events, schools’ events as well as out of hour’s services.  
 
The Hampshire Harvest event had been held on 30 August and had been a 
very successful event. Local traders had taken part and sold a wide variety 
of rurally sourced and rurally themed products. There had also been live 
music performances. Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) had provided relevant 
collections for visitors to view and engage with; on item of particular interest 
was a steam tractor. Windmill staff had also liaised with One Community 
and there had been a display from the Bursledon Brickworks. It was advised 
that HCT had wanted to offer guided tours of the Windmill but due to 
capacity issues, not enough guides were available. Erica reported that this 
was one of the main difficulties of the day.  
 

Agenda Item 2

1



 

 

Members were given an update on the progress of the Windmill’s volunteer 
recruitment. It was reported that unfortunately the progression had been 
slow and that the recruitment process had been carried out primarily through 
email and word of mouth. Despite this, three new volunteers had been 
recruited and time had been taken to allow them understand and engage 
with the buildings and structures. This had been helped through a radio 
interview on BBC Radio Solent with regard to the recruitment of volunteers 
for the Windmill and other local heritage sites. Moreover, a garden 
maintenance volunteer had been recruited with a view to building raised 
beds in order to plant wheat on site.  
 
It was reported that eight school visits had taken place from 24 June to 30 
September including one visit from a Special Educational Needs school. 
These visits had been very successful. Feedback from teaching staff had 
been very good and the Windmill had been given excellent scores for the 
delivery of their service. It was highlighted that a further five classes had 
also been booked for future dates. The Community Engagement and 
Learning Officer had revised and produced new publicity and flyers for 
schools which detailed the workshops available to schools.  
 
It was advised that in May 2015, HCT had produced and distributed its 
‘What’s On’ leaflet that covered the period from June to September. This 
was distributed throughout the region to TICs, libraries, museums, 
accommodation providers, educational establishments, attractions, art 
centres and theatres. The new edition, covering the period October to 
December had been delivered in early September. Online marketing 
through the use of social media and an e-newsletter had also been 
increasingly used and this had produced an increased interest from the 
public and potential visitors. This increase had been significantly aided by 
the Hampshire Harvest event. It was reported that there had been an 
upward trend in visitor figures on the previous year but a slight fall in visitors 
was expected for the winter period, however, it was stressed that this fall 
would be expected due to the colder temperatures. It was advised that HCT 
would always be looking for new ways to attract new visitors.  
 
Members congratulated Erica Munro on her comprehensive and detailed 
report. 
 
Members raised the issue of the obscured view of the Windmill as a result of 
nearby trees. Diccon Bright advised that a survey of the trees and their 
ownership had been commissioned but the survey’s findings had not yet 
been distributed.  
 
Members were concerned that there had been a lack of engagement with 
schools in the Eastleigh Borough area. It was reported that advertising of 
school sessions and workshops was very prominent and schools were 
never turned away and staff would endeavour to accommodate as many 
school groups as possible.  
 
Members raised the issue of parking at the Windmill site. Tim Kelly advised 



 

 

Members that due to the locality of the site, parking was limited and the size 
of guided tours was limited to seven due to fire safety regulations. Erica 
Munro advised that tours would last 25 minutes, leaving every 30 minutes.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(1) That the report be noted.  
(2) That the survey of trees in the Windmill’s locality be distributed.  

 
 
3. BUDGET REPORT 
 
 Tim Kelly reported that income had been strong in relation to the previous 

year. A significant amount of change had taken place and HCT had moved 
to its own accounts package. It was highlighted that the salaries and costs 
were included in venue management and both were actuals.  
 
Members were advised that there would be a different allocation of funds for 
different venues and that certain areas of expenditure, such as collections, 
would differ from venue to venue. It was reported that as HCT consists of 23 
different venues and therefore while benefitting from various collections for 
example, costs cannot simply be split 23 ways as this would depend on the 
size and function of the particular venue. Moreover, it was reported that 
HCT had recently appointed a Financial Director. HCT would no longer be 
able to rely on the support of the strength and size of the finance team at 
Hampshire County Council and that assistance would be required despite 
the use of two full time accountants at HCT.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 

 
4. HLF UPDATE AND FUTURE PLANS AND TOILET BLOCK UPDATE 
 
 It was agreed that agenda Items 5 and 6 be taken together.  

 
The Chair highlighted the three levels of local authority funding directly 
involved with the Windmill; Hampshire County Council (HCC), Eastleigh 
Borough Council (EBC) and Bursledon Parish Council.  
 
Tom Quinton, Chief Operating Officer at HCT, gave a presentation 
highlighting HCT’s approach to the management of the Windmill and the 
future of its relationship with the Joint Management Committee.  
 
It was reported a 2% reduction in funding with a 2%, 2%, 10% and 2% 
model for the next five years. At the end of the five year period, there would 
be a firm commitment to the renegotiation of the agreement. It was advised 
that this would take place in year 3.  
 
It was reported that there had been many redundancies in HCC’s Arts and 
Museums Service and the Windmill’s current curator was also responsible 
for five other venues across Hampshire. Moreover, the cost per visitor to the 
taxpayer was approximately £25 per person and heritage organisations in 

3



 

 

general were struggling to move towards sustainability.  
 
Many different funding ideas had been previously discussed such as 
obtaining a marriage licence for the Windmill site in order to generate 
income and provide a more diverse use for the site. A marriage licence 
would cost approximately £2,100 and such a cost would need to be off-set 
with marketing and publicity with a view to gaining a customer base. Tom 
Quinton advised that Members and HCT needed to be wary of short term 
solutions as these may be a distraction away from long-term targets.  
 
Members expressed their frustration at the length of time it had taken to 
make repairs to the structure and mechanism of the Windmill but 
appreciated this may be due to a lack of sufficient resources. Members were 
advised that the wind-shaft replacement had been completed and that 
resolving a number of snagging issues had caused the delay. As a result of 
health and safety checks, staff were not happy to use the repaired 
mechanism until it had been thoroughly checked and tested. Erica Munro 
expressed regret that these tests could be fully carried out until the wind 
was blowing and both the miller and architect are available. It was advised 
that this testing would be carried out on 12 November 2015.  
 
Tom Quinton reported that HCT were keen to advance with the work on the 
proposed toilet block at the Windmill site but needed to wait for a decision 
from the EBC Local Area Committee with regard to funding.  
 
Councillor Van Niekerk advised that the Local Area Committee needed to 
see a fundraising plan for the Windmill in order to make a decision but would 
soon be meeting to discuss the issue and would report back to HCT soon 
after.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(1) That a decision with regard to the funding for the toilet block be 
confirmed by the Borough Council; 

(2) That the position on the Windmill’s revenue funding for 2015/16 
and 2016/17 be clarified by the Borough Council; 

(3) That the plans for the proposed toilet block be completed by the 
Hampshire Cultural Trust;  

(4) That a fundraising plan for the Windmill be provided by the 
Hampshire Cultural Trust; and 

(5) That details of revenue cost apportionment based on actual 
expenditure for the Windmill be provided by the Hampshire 
Cultural Trust.  

 
 
5. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 RESOLVED – That the next meeting be held on 23 February 2016 at 

11:00 am at Eastleigh House.  
 
M5603 



 

1 
 

  
 AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

  

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 23 FEBRUARY 2016 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Erica Munro 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
1  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site 
 

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery 
 
The winter period at Bursledon Windmill was a much quieter time than in previous months, 
with storms, cold and heavy rain greatly affecting the number of visitors and potential for 
activity. Compared to museums and indoor heritage venues in the region, the outdoor and 
rural nature of the Windmill site means it is unsuitable in adverse weather for longer visits, 
vulnerable visitors and events with larger numbers. However, this has given the team a 
chance to focus on maintenance, training, programming and planning. The automaton 
donations box which had broken has been repaired by its designer, and the older 
interactive windmill model has been painted, fixed and moved to a more prominent place 
in the Barn, making a better use of the raised platform. 
 
A volunteer milling training day took place in December. Despite expectations, the wind did 
blow but two volunteers were unable to attend at short notice, so the training went ahead 
with two staff members and one volunteer. A formal training programme and record book 
has been developed by site staff which reflects the Operating Manual, and gives a 
valuable record for both trainee and managers on how much our new volunteers have 
learned. Over the next year, this training system will be rolled out to volunteers, with 
another two recruited over this winter period. The Curator attended food hygiene training in 
order to better manage the cleaning schedules and food safety requirements of the site. 
 
Progress has been made with plans for the toilet block, safety improvements to the inside 

of the windmill cap and external lightning protection. Building work for the toilet block 

began on the 1st February with no interference to usual site operations. Neighbours have 

been kept fully informed by both venue staff and the contractors, T. Coleborn and Sons, 

under the management of Hampshire County Council’s team. 

Funding has recently been secured via the TESCO Bags of Help scheme in order to 

improve and maintain the outdoor areas of the site which may include  the pond, boundary 

hedges and car park. 

 

 

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill 
Covering period October 2015 to February 2016 

Agenda Item 3

5



 

2 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 

2009 – 

2010  

520 509 192 425 720 390 425 242 214 237 264 396 4534 

 

2010 – 

2011 

660 612 558 461 801 386 542 327 88 262 473 386 5556 

 

2011 – 

2012 
581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866 

 

2012 – 

2013 
385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314 

 

2013 – 

2014 
252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719 

2014 – 

2015  
252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152 

2015-

2016 
298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109    

 
Visitor figures throughout the year show a trend upwards but the period November to 
February was very low. A very wet winter with high winds has meant few visitors, 
particularly in December. Special events, out of hours visits and school visits in August 
and October led to higher visitor figures than in previous years, but with no school 
bookings and adverse weather the winter period was especially poor. Comparison to the 
previous year is unhelpful, as the reopening at the end of November 2014 created an 
artificially high baseline, and prior to that, admission was free so it is difficult to compare 
like for like. On the plus side, attention to maintenance, staff training and cleaning have 
benefited from the lower visitor numbers and more volunteer/staff time.  
 
The business case for opening less in the winter and more in the summer is currently 
under review with a decision anticipated in time for the next summer period. A number of 
events have been programmed in order to attract larger numbers throughout the 
forthcoming year, including a wood-themed arts and crafts festival, a ‘Hogs, Cogs and 
Kegs’ food and drink event, an Easter animal petting farm, specially themed activities for 
National Mills Weekend and National Science Week and the ever-popular summer pizza 
day. 
 



 

3 
 

 

 
2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice 
 
2.1 Caring for collections  
The Hampshire Cultural Trust Collections Development Policy 2015-2020, was launched 
in October and is now available on the Trust website. This policy guides decisions relating 
to the acquisition and disposal of objects relating to Eastleigh Borough, as a well as other 
parts of the County. It was written soon after the Trust was formed and has now been 
formally approved by the Board of Trustees and both Hampshire County Council and 
Winchester City Council as owners or trustees of the collections. The policy is one of a 
suite of documents that all museums are required to have to retain their Museum 
Accreditation. Bursledon Windmill was last awarded Full Accreditation in 2013. The Trust 
will be invited to provide evidence that the Windmill continues to comply with the 
Accreditation Standard in October 2016 with a submission deadline of 30 April 2017. 
 
2.2 Promoting access to collections and providing specialist knowledge and 

advice 
In November, 27 objects from the Natural Sciences Collection in Winchester were carefully 
selected for use in the ‘Mill by Torchlight’ event – mainly ‘creepy animals’, many of them 
nocturnal, including a raven and the ‘mummified cat’. 
 

 
This raven was amongst the specimens displayed during Mill by Torchlight 

 

7



 

4 
 

 

3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

3.1  Formal Education Provision 
In October the Community Engagement and Learning Officer (CELO) worked with 118 
school pupils in 5 school groups. Schools tend not to visit between October Half Term and 
February Half Term due to the cold and wet, but the CELO does have enquiries in hand for 
March visits. 

 

Date School 
Key Stage & 

Year Group 

No. of 

children 
Type of workshop 

5 Oct 
Holbrook Primary, Speech 

& Language Unit 

KS1&2, 

Yrs 1 to 5 
11 

The Little Red Hen and 

the Grain Chain 

13 Oct Freegrounds Junior KS2, Yr 3 28 Flour Power 

13 Oct Freegrounds Junior KS2, Yr 3 29 Flour Power 

13 Oct Freegrounds Junior KS2, Yr 3 30 Flour Power 

19 Oct 
Newtown Soberton 

Primary 
KS1 Yr 1 20 

The Little Red Hen and 

the Grain Chain 

 
Feedback received from teachers has been very good. The comments form from Rachel 
Madocks School was received after the last JMC Report, but their response is worth 
including here as the school is for children with severe learning and physical disabilities. 
The teacher said: 
 
“All of our pupils were in wheelchairs. This made seeing the entire windmill difficult. Janet 
made the session very inclusive though and used other means to let the pupils experience 
it. The ramp made accessing the ground floor easy. We were able to access the barn very 
easily and use the items within it. It was a really lovely session that the pupils could access 
with lots of items to feel, taste and smell. The children have gone on to present their day 
out to the rest of the school in an assembly showing the grain chain and the windmill.” 
 
The teacher from Newtown Soberton also commented on the “Excellent service from 
Janet” and said that the “Activities in the barn were ideal for a year one class.” However, 
this teacher did comment that it would be great if the windmill could be seen working for 
school groups. Several enquiries have resulted in no bookings when the teachers realise 
that the children will be experiencing a static windmill. We hope to work towards a position 
where the windmill could operate on several weekdays in September and October when 
schools are doing their harvest topic. 
 
 
3.2  Community Engagement and Learning 
The Front of House team have added to the CEL offer with Special Sunday activities for 
families  – all about Cogs and Gears in October, Hibernation in November, the Twelve 
Days of Christmas in December, and Winter Wildlife in January. The CELO provided the 
specimens and an activity for the Hibernation event.  

 
 



 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Activities for the Hibernation-themed Special Sunday, 29 November 

 

 
 

9



 

6 
 

 

The CEL Team planned and delivered the Half Term Hoot of Owls workshop science 
activities, with a volunteer doing the art activities. The CELO planned the Mill by Torchlight 
event and ran it along with the Curator, Front of House team and volunteers.  The out-of-
hours activity is listed in the table below but Special Sundays are included in the regular 
Sunday visit numbers. 
 

Date Activity/Event Target Audience 
No. of 

participants 

28 Oct 
A Hoot of Owls – Drop-in 

family workshop 
Families 144 

13 Nov The Mill by Torchlight Families 20 

 
 

 
The mysterious storyteller in the Windmill, Mill by Torchlight, 13 November 

 
 
The numbers attending the Mill by Torchlight evening were disappointing as it was a 
wonderful atmospheric event and an innovative way of telling a heritage story. Those who 
did come thought it was marvellous and stayed for hours. We would like to try running the 
event again with a marketing campaign targeting schools earlier in the run-up to the event 
and no clash with Children in Need night! 



 

7 
 

 
 

Staff and volunteers from the Windmill’s team in ghostly costume for Mill by Torchlight, 13 November 

 

 
 

11



 

8 
 

 
Collections on display during Mill by Torchlight, 13 November 

 
The Hoot of Owls event had the opposite problem – it was at times too crowded for 
comfort, because there was so much to do that the first arrivals were still there as more 
and more families poured in. This experience may have put some families off attending the 
Torchlight event. A new on-line booking system should help to limit numbers and to ensure 
attendance before committing to going ahead with an event, and will allow us to do more 
booked events and fewer drop-ins. 
 
The CELO has spent some time planning the Spring and Summer programmes so that 
February and June Half Terms and the Easter Holiday have plenty on offer. 
 
 
 



 

9 
 

4   Marketing and Communications 

4.1 Print material 
The new edition of What’s On covering the period January to April 
was produced in a new 6pp format and covers the Eastleigh and 
Bursledon areas. It is currently in circulation to TICs, libraries, 
museums, accommodation providers, educational establishments, 
attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. 
 
4.2 Online marketing 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring activities and 
events from Bursledon Windmill, is sent to sign-ups on a new 
database. Subscribers now number over 2,000. 
 
4.3 Research 
Postcodes are routinely collected from visitors at over two three-
monthly periods - Jan to March and June to Aug. These are 
profiled using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information 
on which groups of people are using and not using our services 
and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area. This 
feeds into service and marketing planning processes.  
  
4.4 Social Media 
HCT Facebook now has over 2,300 “likes” and twitter over 3,500 followers. Events at 
Bursledon Windmill are promoted by HCT’s central marketing team on both social media 
sites on an ongoing basis . The events promoted recently include the following: 

04-Oct Bursledon Windmill Special Sundays (30 Nov, 20th Dec) 

28-Oct Bursledon Windmill A Hoot of Owls 

13-Nov Bursledon Windmill The Mill by Torchlight 

29-Nov Bursledon Windmill The Big Sleep  

20-Dec Bursledon Windmill The 12 days of Christmas  

24-Jan Bursledon Windmill Winter Wildlife Trails 

24-Jan Bursledon Windmill Special Sundays (24 March) 
 

The Windmill site team also operate a Facebook page and Twitter feed, updated on 
Sundays by our staff and volunteers. A recent review, left on our Facebook page, reads: 

 

 
 
4.5 HCT Ambassadors 
We currently have 38 Founding Ambassadors and two Corporate Partners with donated 
revenue of £48,750. 

Erica Munro 
February 2016 

13





1 

 

Bursledon Windmill DRAFT Venue Plan, 2016-17                                                

 

ABOUT HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST 

Hampshire arts and museums are operated and funded by Hampshire Cultural Trust. The Trust champions world-class 

culture and exists to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s creative economy. This independent charity works 

collaboratively to bring organisations, people and ideas together for greater impact. It’s an exciting time for culture in 

our county. To find out more and get involved visit: www.hampshireculturaltrust.org.uk  

OUR VISION 
We will all strive to be the champion of world-class culture in Hampshire 
 

OUR MISSION 

We will showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s culture and creative economy 

Bursledon Windmill Venue Plan in context: 
Delivering against the key objectives above will ensure that Hampshire Cultural Trust and individual venues like 
Bursledon Windmill continue to contribute to the overarching strategic frameworks of their primary funders.  
 
Glossary of Positions and post holders: 

Initials Position 

ACC Area Community Curator 
CEL Community Engagement and Learning  
BLC Better Life Chances 
HoC Head of Collections and Programme Delivery 
PC Principal Conservator 
EM Exhibitions Manager 
C Curators in Collections and Programme Delivery Team 

A
genda Item

 415



2 

 

 

DRAFT Venue Plan, 2016-2017 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 
HCT goals 

Link to 
Eastleigh  
Borough 
Council 
outcomes 

1. Public programmes  

 Design and deliver large scale 
community event 
1 x special event per year 

ACC 150 visitors 
£300 income 
generated  

Windmill profile 
raised with local 
and regional 
audiences 

 HCT1 
HCT2 

EBC2 
EBC3 

 

2. Community Learning and Engagement –  

 Schools 
Offer a programme of led 
curriculum-based workshops for 
schools, especially Key Stages 1 
& 2 

CEL 
team 

400 pupil 
interactions 
£1000 income 

Pupils display 
an increased 
knowledge of 
the subject 
matter.  Pupils 
are more 
actively 
engaged in the 
subject matter 
at school 

 HCT1 
HCT2 

 

 Families 
Offer family learning activities in 
line with the HLF Action Plan, 
both on Sundays and a range of 
out-of-hours open days and 
workshops in school holidays.  

CEL 
team 

150 
participants 
 
£600 income  

Increase in 
repeat visits to 
the windmill. 
Profile raised as 
a place to 
experience 

 HCT1 
HCT2 
 

EBC2 
EBC3 



3 

 

• 5 x Windmill Wednesdays – 
led drop-in workshops 
during school holidays 

• 6 X Special Sunday family 
activities during normal 
opening hours 

natural science 
and craft led 
activities. 
Families report 
high levels of 
satisfaction with 
the offer. 

 Adults 
Promote and develop workshops 
and activities for adults on the 
site  
• 1 x tutor-led long course (full 

day) 
• 3 x tutor led short courses 

(half day 
• 2 x adult targeted Special 

Sundays (NSEW, demos, etc) 
 

ACC 50 participants 
£150 income 

Raise profile of 
the windmill as 
a learning 
venue for adults 

 HCT2 EBC3 

 

 

Additional activities may take place as part of Hampshire’s Big Theme programme via the Collections and Programme 

Delivery Team, venue team, CEL/BLC team. Innovations Lab or other HCT departments. 

17



4 

 

 

3. Collections       
 Manage storage, documentation, 

digitisation, conservation of and 
access to collections associated 
with Bursledon Windmill and all 
related information at Chilcomb 
House 

HoC Ongoing Objects remain 
in good 
condition and 
easy access 
provided 

HCT1 EBC3 

 Provide an emergency 
conservation service for 
collections on display in event of 
flood, fire or other disaster 

PC As required Appropriate 
level of 
response 
provided 

HCT1 EBC3 

 Continue monitoring the 
environment and pest 
management 

PC Ongoing Damage 
prevented 

HCT1 EBC3 

 Continue to monitor security of 
the objects on display  

PC Ongoing No losses HCT1 EBC3 

 Support events through the 
supply of specialist knowledge 
and objects/specimens from the 
collections including  
natural science and social and 
industrial history  

C As required 
 

Increase in 
visits to site 

HCT1 EBC3 

 Ensure Bursledon Windmill 
retains Accreditation as part of 
the Hampshire Cultural Trust 
submissions 

HoC April 2017 Museum 
continues to 
meet national 
standard 

HCT1 EBC3 

 Continue to develop concept and 
prepare for a Collections Centre 
for Hampshire Cultural Trust  

HoC March 2017 Funding 
secured for 
next stage of 
development 

 HCT1 EBC3 



5 

 

 

4. Local Priorities 

 Develop or contribute to 
partnership events, e.g. with 
Brickworks and local Country 
Parks, or focussing on local 
producers/suppliers 

• 1x special event per year 

ACC 100 visitors Develop 
working 
partnerships 
with other 
similar venues. 
Develop group 
visits on the 
site. 

 HCT1 
HCT2 
 

EBC2 
EBC3 

 Be present at local community 
events through stalls and talks 
• 1 x stall at a local fete/event 
• 1 x outreach talk  

ACC 100 min. 
people 
engaged 

Profile and 
visibility of 
windmill raised 
as a significant 
local site 

HCT2 
HCT2 

EBC3 

 Offer a group visit and outreach 
service for organised groups 
within the community (e.g. 
Scouts, U3A, special interest 
groups)  
• 8 adult groups per year 
• 5 children groups per year 

CEL 
team 
& 
ACC 

130 min. 
participants 
£650 income 

Profile of the 
windmill raised 
as an engaging 
and educational  
place for group 
visits 

 HCT2 EBC2 
EBC3 

19



6 

 

 

5. Business Development   

 Strategic management of 
Bursledon Windmill focusing on 
increasing visitors, generating 
investment and increasing 
trading income. 

    HCT2 EBC2 

 Develop annual Venue Plans and 
manage relationships and 
processes with JMC. 

   HCT2 EBC2 

 Collect postcode data and use 
Mosaic profiles and maps to 
target groups and local cold 
spots with specific campaigns. 

 Minimum 3% 
increase in 
audiences 
from previous 
year. Target 
Groups F, B, G. 

More local 
visitors from 
target groups 
visiting more 
often. 

HCT2 EBC2 

 Produce and distribute ‘What’s 
On’ guides three times per year 
as means of marketing events 
programme. Additional 
marketing activity including on 
social media, internet, email, PR 
and print. 

 12,500 print 
run with local 
and regional 
distribution 
 
 

Strong local 
awareness of 
windmill’s 
programme 
leading to 
more local 
visitors visiting 
more often 

 HCT2 EBC2 



7 

 

 

6. Venue management  

 Continue to improve customer 
service through the 
staff/volunteer Front of House 
team to ensure a warm and 
friendly welcome at all times 
 
Staff/Volunteer Development 
programme designed and 
implemented 

ACC 3,500 visitors 
 

90% of 
customers 
surveyed said 
the museum 
was good or 
excellent 
 
Positive reviews 
on TripAdvisor 
and Facebook 

 HCT1 EBC2 

 Develop and train volunteer team 
to enable effective service 
delivery  

ACC Volunteer 
hours 
increased to 
1000 per 
annum 
and mill 
operation 
team 
established 

Hours of site 
activity increase 
by 10% on pre-
HLF restoration 
figures 

HCT1 EBC2 

 Building is safe and adequately 
maintained at all times through 
regular H&S reviews, cleaning 
schedules, pest control etc. 
 
All building issues reported to 
relevant contractors within 4 
hours 

ACC Venue open & 
safe when 
scheduled and 
as advertised 

Visitors report 
satisfaction with 
the standard of 
the building  

HCT1 EBC2 

21



8 

 

 Review and improve retail space. 
Ensure the stock buying aligns to 
the key programmes and 
campaigns 

ACC Minimum 3% 
increase in 
earned income 
from previous 
year 

Increased 
secondary 
spend figure 

 HCT2 EBC3 

 Continue development of hirings 
on site, eg. wedding receptions, 
film locations and corporate 
events 

ACC 1 x 
commercial 
hire 

Increased 
income to site 

 HCT2 EBC3 

 

 

Date/Meeting where Plan was approved:  

Date of next review:  

 

4. Added value activities i.e. activities falling outside the specific Venue budget but are of operational or strategic 

value to the museum services at Bursledon Windmill 

 Key actions Lead Target Outcome Budget Link to HCT 
goals 

Link to 
Eastleigh 
Borough 
Council 
outcomes 

 Funding sourced from 
Hampshire Futures to support 
learning at Bursledon Windmill 

BLC 300 learning 
hours 
£1000 income 

New audiences 
developed for 
the windmill site 

 HCT1 
HCT2 

EBC2 

 

 



9 

 

Appendix 1: Hampshire Cultural Trust Goal and Local Authority Priorities 

Hampshire Cultural Trust Goals Eastleigh Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy identifies 
three priorities 

In order to achieve our vision, in the first five years (2015-
2020) we will, 

1. Re-focus our own business to deliver excellence and 
build a world class arts and museums portfolio 
which has the power to transform people’s lives 

2. Ensure the Trust grows as a successful and resilient 
not for profit business 

3. Inspire a dynamic partnership to achieve the shared 
cultural vision for Hampshire 

EBC1.  A green borough – Safeguarding our environment 
for future generations 
EBC2.  A prosperous place – where business can flourish 
and everyone can share in prosperity. 
EBC3.  A healthy community – active and lively with a spirit 
of togetherness, health and wellbeing. 

 

23





EASTLEIGH MUSEUM / BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES  
 

23 FEBRUARY 2016 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

 
Introduction 
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council, the net cost of running Bursledon 
Windmill and Eastleigh Museum is shared between the partner authorities.  
 
This report provides an update on the 2015/16 budget.  Please note that the 2014/15 actuals span the periods when venues were run by HCC 
(April – Oct) and Hampshire Cultural Trust (Nov to Mar). 
 
Description of  2015/16 Budget 
The 2015/16 budget for Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 
1. Venue Management - salaries 

Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs. 
 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs 
during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance 
will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick 
up any such overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

 
3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 

This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display development, transport, setting up and taking down, 
cases for local exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

 
4. Collections  

This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum, 
organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to 
store, manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them available to the local community in support of 
exhibitions, displays and activities. 
 

A
genda Item

 525



5. Area Learning and Engagement  
The Community Engagement and Learning team are responsible for the design, creation, marketing and delivery of participatory learning 
sessions for young people in school and family groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, 
both within the museum and beyond in to the community. 
 

6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions include visitor research, targeted marketing 
campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to 
free editorial and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding from 
external sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate. 
 

These budget headings reflect the headings in the Venue Plans, making it easier to understand where money is being spent and how 
Bursledon Windmill and Eastleigh Museum directly benefit. The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and the 1% pay award. 
They also include more accurate projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading arm and 
projected income from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
The Trust strategy takes a more business-focused approach.  Key aims include: 
 

a) The centrally provided exhibition programmes will be increasingly cost-effective and commercial with the objective of increasing visitors 
and income. Stronger connections will be made between the community museum and flagship venue programmes: for example, 
Hampshire’s Big Theme 2014 (1914 – Commemorating World War 1); Lego Lost Worlds Zoo 

b) Expenditure in marketing (both print-based and digital) will increase in support of these programmes and their income/ visitor targets 
c) Expenditure in fundraising will increase in support of meeting revenue external investment targets 
d) Expenditure in business development expertise will be maintained and strengthened to support long-term development plans, revenue 

and capital investment for culture across Hampshire, including in Eastleigh Borough 
e) Levering additional investment for public programming across all venues, including into Eastleigh Borough. It will be allocated across 

arts and museums public programmes on an annual basis or in relation to specific projects which have secured external investment, 
with priority given to partners demonstrating most strategic commitment. 

 
In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and in kind support generously received from 
volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or organisations.   
 
An example of this external benefit is the recently secured Heritage Lottery Funded programme - Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the 
Hampshire Solent Area. This project will create opportunities for the Hampshire Cultural Trust and other Museums in the area to develop their 



fundraising networks and skills. This three-year programme aims to create a culture of philanthropy, and inspire a real step change for both the 
sector and the philanthropic community in the Hampshire Solent area.  
 
Recommendation 
That the 2015/16 budget update is noted by the committees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

27



Appendix 1 

Eastleigh Museum 

 

Expenditure 

Actuals 

2014/15 

£ 

Budget 

2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 

Dec 15 

 £ 

 Bursledon Windmill 

 

Expenditure 

Actuals 

2014/15 

£ 

Budget 

2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 

Dec 15 

£ 

Venue Management - salaries 9,607 9,663 7,246  Venue Management - salaries 22,076 31,301 23,475 

Venue Management - costs* 11,667 19,264 7.040  Venue Management - costs* 5,937 7,500 4,201 

Public Programmes (exhibitions) 21,004 18,433 13,824  Public Programmes (exhibitions) 4,789 4,608 3,456 

Collections 42,941 45,421 34,065  Collections 6,611 11,355 8,516 

Area Learning and Engagement 17,728 24,431 18,323  Area Learning and Engagement 23,474 24,431 18,323 

Business Development 13,843 22,577 16,932  Business Development 13,843 22,577 16,932 

Total Expenditure 116,790 139,789 97,430  Total Expenditure 76,730 101,772 74,903 

Income 4,830 6,695 258  Income 3,054 6,695 3,026 

Net Expenditure 111,960 133,094 97,172  Net Expenditure 73,679 95,077 71,877 

 

Total Net Expenditure Actuals 

2014/15 

£ 

Budget 

2015/16 

£ 

Actuals 

Dec 15 

 £ 

Eastleigh Museum 111,960 133,094 97,172 

Bursledon Windmill 73,679 95,077 71,877 

Total Net Expenditure 185,639 228,171 169,049 

    

Income Actuals 

2014/15 

£ 

Budget 

2015/16 

(indicative) 

£ 

Actuals 

Dec 15 

 £ 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 

EBC Eastleigh Museum  

EBC Windmill 

BPC Windmill 

125,239 

30,000 

27,728 

2,672 

167,771 

30,000 

27,728 

2,672 

136,377 

30,000 

0 

2,672 

Total Income 185,639 228,171 169,049 

 



Schools’ Service, Eastleigh Museum & Bursledon Windmill 

Target users for the on-going offer are primary schools, as secondary schools have larger 

year groups which cannot be accommodated at small sites with few facilities. Secondary 

schools are engaged through the special project work which has been reported on 

previously. 

National Curriculum Links 

Schools will only make a visit outside of the classroom - or book a workshop in the school -  

if it helps them to deliver the requirements of the new Primary National Curriculum, so the 

process of devising, promoting and delivering an offer for schools begins with a thorough 

knowledge of the NC and its Programmes of Study. Then we can identify where there are 

links between those areas of content and the subject matter of the museum or site. 

Eastleigh Museum NC links are all with the History curriculum. For Key Stage 1 (infant 

schools) the museum has themes that link with Changes Within Living Memory and 

Significant Historical Events, People and Places in Their Own Locality. For these units we 

offer ‘Home Explorers’, ‘Our Town in the Past – the Coming of the Railway’ and ‘Home Front 

Eastleigh’ workshops, as research has shown that many schools choose to look at homes for 

the Changes Within Living Memory unit and the coming of the railway for the locality unit. 

The KS1 World War 2 session has been devised for Ampfield Primary School and will now be 

promoted to all schools. For KS2 (junior schools) the museum has themes that link with A 

Local History Study and A Study of an Aspect or Theme in British History that Extends Pupils’ 

Chronological Knowledge Beyond 1066. For these units we offer KS2 versions of ‘Our Town 

in the Past’ and ‘Home Front Eastleigh.’ If we get an exhibition with a NC theme, we devise 

an offer for the duration of the exhibition. 

 

 

 

 

Bursledon Windmill NC links are more cross curricular, with the most links being to the 

Science programmes of study – Plants, Seasonal Changes and aspects of Animals, Including 

Humans for KS1; and for KS2 Plants, Animals, Including Humans and  Forces. Units from 

other subjects such as Geography and DT are also relevant to the windmill and classes from 

both Key Stages have undertaken literacy workshops. There has been little uptake for the 

specific History, Environmental Science and Geography workshops (other places can do 

them more relevantly). These are still on offer, but the in-demand sessions are the ones that 

are linked to the core subject matter of the windmill -  ‘The Little Red Hen and the Grain 

Chain’ for KS1 (Science and English) and ‘Flour Power’ for KS2 (Science and DT). 

  

Agenda Item 6

29



Developing a workshop for schools 

Once we know where there is a link between what schools have to study and what the 

museum or site has available, we devise the workshop: 

• Research and planning 

• Producing and procuring teaching resources 

• Producing session plans, teachers’ notes, risk assessments 

• Communicating/promoting it to schools 

• Trialling, evaluating, and improving or maintaining the resources 

• Training session leaders to deliver it 

Each booking involves (for the CELO): 

• Taking the first enquiry and subsequent calls or emails to the point of booking 

• Administration of booking – forms, invoices, liaison with site staff, organising staffing 

for workshop delivery 

• Issuing pre-visit paperwork – session plan, teachers’ notes, adult helper notes, risk 

assessment, directions etc 

• Running pre-visit meeting or phone call with the teachers and writing up notes for 

session leader if CELO not leading workshop 

• Setting up, running and clearing up after session and cleaning the site if at the 

windmill 

• Issuing and responding to feedback forms 

• Recording and reporting on visit data 

 

 

 

 

 

There is an on-going programme of communicating the offer to schools – producing and 

sending out flyers and termly updates by email and through the schools’ courier service, 

adding info to teachers’ pages on HCC’s intranet, updating our own websites, attending NQT 

Fairs and Primary History Teachers’ Conferences, and carrying out surveys with actual and 

potential service users. The offer from Eastleigh Museum is advertised to schools in the 

Eastleigh area, whereas the Windmill offer is advertised more widely as well. All 

promotional material, particularly on-line, uses the wording from the DfE and the 

vocabulary that teachers use, to aid their searches for subject-relevant visit venues. 

Schools’ use of the sites over the last few years 

 



Eastleigh Museum: 

The museum has only local appeal for schools with its stories and subject matter, and has 

relatively poor facilities for schools (no coach parking, lunch room or coat hanging space, 

only 1 toilet, no adequate space to fit in a whole class for the introduction, no designated 

space separate from other visitors, no option for year groups with 2 or more classes to visit 

together), so its main target market is local schools within walking distance – Cherbourg, 

Crescent, Norwood and Nightingale Primaries and Shakespeare Infant and Junior. 

The museum has consistently achieved bookings from the 6 schools within walking distance 

either every year or every other year (where there is presumably vertical grouping) since 

2011. A few schools outside walking distance are also regular visitors or regular bookers of 

outreach sessions – Fryern Infant and Junior, Stoke Park Junior, Scantabout Primary, 

Hiltingbury Junior and Knightwood Primary. More occasional bookings have come from 

Merdon Junior, John Keble Primary at Hursley, Twyford St Mary Primary, Shepherd’s Down 

School, The Focus School, Thornden and Crestwood Secondary Schools and Wildern 

Secondary School who made many visits for the WW1 project. 

The bookings are largely for the local history and WW2 sessions, with special exhibition 

visits in third place, and outreach sessions on fossil & dinosaur themes becoming popular 

recently due to Dinofest. 

Pupil visit numbers for last few academic years are: 

Year Pupil Numbers 

Sept 2011 to July 2012 504 

Sept 2012 to July 2013 542 

Sept 2013 to July 2014 711 (lots of WW1 project work) 

Sept 2014 to July 2015 653 

Sept 2014 to July 2016, after Autumn Term only 90 (in line with last Autumn term’s 88) 

 

These figures compare favourably with other small museums locally which don’t have a 

collection (such as Toys or Prehistory) with a strong link to the new curriculum. 

            

            

            

            

            

            

             

 

Bursledon Windmill: 

  

31



The site has only Bursledon Infant and Junior Schools within walking distance, so schools 

have to add on travel costs to come and can only come one class at a time because of 

having to split each single class into 2 groups to keep the numbers inside the windmill within 

safe limits (so there is nowhere for the second class to work). The fact that there has only 

been one toilet and wash basin is a disadvantage, and the unheated buildings make it 

unsuitable for visits in colder months. The hazardous nature of the windmill stairs added to 

the above make this quite a problematic site for running school visits. Moreover, without 

site staff on weekdays in term time, the CEL Team have to provide 2 members of staff for 

every school workshop. Talking to teachers, the biggest reason for schools not visiting is that 

children cannot see the windmill in action. Without a full site team on hand it has to be 

static. Some schools have opted to promote family visits on a Sunday as a homework task 

rather than making a class visit when the sails aren’t turning. Producing flour again will help, 

as schools always want to buy some flour to take back to school for bread making to finish 

the Grain Chain activities they have done on-site. There are plans to work the windmill on 

some weekdays in September and October which would be very popular with schools. 

The windmill does have many strengths as a venue – it is unique in the area, it has direct 

curriculum links, the workshops are very good, there are at least 18 primary schools near 

enough to come for a short visit without needing lunch or the toilet, and the proximity to 

the M27 makes it accessible to a wide catchment area. 

Pupil visit numbers for last few academic years are: 

Year Pupil Numbers 

Sept 2011 to July 2012 264 

Sept 2012 to July 2013 538 (impact of new CEL Team & new 

workshops) 

Sept 2013 to July 2014 255 (removal of sails) 

Sept 2014 to July 2015 416 

Sept 2015 to July 2016, after Autumn Term only 236 (up on the 215 last Autumn term) 

 

Bursledon Infant School is the most consistent visitor, coming every year to do the Little Red 

workshop with Year 1. The juniors only came when we offered a free trial session for our 

eco-explorers’ workshop but did not re-book when they would have had to pay. As all 

Bursledon children visit in KS1, the KS2 teachers probably want a different trip venue. The 

other local school to visit regularly is Freegrounds Junior, to do the Flour Power workshop 

every year with Year 3. The other regular bookers are not so local – Holbrook Primary in 

Gosport, Meonstoke Infant north of Fareham, and Shepherd’s Down Special School near 

Winchester, again all for the harvest time topics. Of the other local schools – targeted 

regularly with information and special offers – only King’s Copse Primary have visited twice 

in 4 years.  St Swithun Wells Primary made 4 class visits back in 2012,  Shamblehurst Primary 

came when there was special project funding, and Wildern Secondary have also done 

project work at the windmill. A range of schools from Fareham, Gosport, Southampton and 



further afield have made one to three class visits over the last 4 years and schools from as 

far away as Havant, Salisbury, Andover, the New Forest and Dorset have visited. 

The majority of these visits are made in the Autumn Term each year and the Little Red Hen 

and Flour Power workshops make up the bulk of them. There are usually a number of visits 

between March and July and none December to February. The environmental science 

workshops do not get bookings when a charge is made, only when offered free (if paying, 

there are better venues to do this). There has been no recent uptake on the specific 

geography session and none for looking at the history of the site. So it is the grain chain 

sessions and the occasional creative writing workshop that make up the current bookings. 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

    

         Janet Wildman, February 2016 

 
 

33



 

 

 

Other Community Engagement & Learning Activity  

at Eastleigh Museum & Bursledon Windmill 

As well as planning and delivering the schools’ offer, the CELO also directly provides, or 

helps the curator plan for, a range of other activities for non-schools audiences at both sites. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Families with School Aged Children: 

Hands-on Holidays – Collections-based led drop-in workshops, 3 a year at Eastleigh 

Museum, usually school holiday Thursdays. Lots of regular visitors anticipate these events. 

Recent examples – Fun in the Fields linked to the Found in the Fields exhibition; Monstrous 

Activities linked to the Dino Artist exhibition; Time Detectives local history workshop. 

 

 

 

 

 

Museum Make & Do Days – Self-led or volunteer-led drop-in activities - craft packs, trails 

etc connected to permanent display or temporary exhibition themes. 4 a year in school 

holidays at Eastleigh Museum, usually Thursdays. E.g. Museum May-kers last year;  Royal 

Peg Dolls coming this August. 

Windmill Wednesdays – School holiday led drop-in workshops, 5 a year at Bursledon 

Windmill. E.g. last October’s A Hoot of Owls, the Great Bursledon Bake Off in the summer 

holiday and this Easter’s Spring into Action. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Special Sundays – Additional family activities during normal opening times, run by 

volunteers with CELT often providing resources and doing the scheduling. 6 per year at 

Bursledon Windmill. E.g. Winter Wildlife Trails in January and Cogs and Gears for British 

Science week in March. 

Families with Under 5’s: 

Museums for Beginners – Led drop-in workshops on school days in term time at both sites, 

1 or 2 a year depending on exhibitions at Eastleigh and 1 a year at Bursledon. E.g. Teddy 

Bear’s Picnic at Bursledon last summer; Dinosaurs for Beginners at Eastleigh last November. 

 

 

 

 

 

The Local Community: 

Special Events – linked to exhibition openings, partner programming, national events, Big 

Themes or seasonal themes. 1 or 2 a year at each site. Recent examples – Meet the 

Dinosaur and Christmas Past at Eastleigh Museum; Mill by Torchlight and Hampshire 

Harvest at the Windmill. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Museums Out There – Stalls or activities at events and talks at other venues. The CELO 

sometimes provides the activities for Eastleigh Museum and One Community run it at the 

event. The curator has given several talks about the windmill at other venues over the last 

year. 

  

35



 

 

  

Town Trails – History trails, photo trails etc starting and finishing at the museum. E.g. the 

CELO made walking trails for the openings of the Victorian and WW1 exhibitions. 

Adults: 

Meet the Experts – Talks and object handling sessions linked to collections and exhibitions. 

2 or 3 a year at Eastleigh Museum. E.g. Dino Curator last October; railway talk coming up 

this summer. 

Leisure Learning – Tutor-led courses for adults at Bursledon Windmill, eg Ways with Wood 

this summer (no uptake for a programme at Eastleigh Museum last year). 

Special Sundays – Additional activities during normal opening hours at the Windmill. E.g. 

Technical Tours for British Science Week last year. 1 or 2 per year. 

Other work with targeted, priority or hard-to-reach adult groups is done by the CELO 

through in-depth project work as part of the Trust’s Better Life Chances work. E.g. last year’s 

Get More Out of Galleries project with a group of adults with learning disabilities from 

Southampton City College. 

Adults’ and Children’s Community Groups: 

Out of Hours – Booked group site visits to Bursledon Windmill by adult groups such as WI 

and U3A, and children’s groups such as scouts, brownies and beavers. About 5 per year of 

each. (Also occasional use of Eastleigh Museum by the children’s groups out of hours). 

 

 

 

 

 

Older People: 

Reminiscence Workshops – At Eastleigh Museum or as outreach in care settings and other 

venues. Themed, collections-based led workshops. 5 in the last year at or from Eastleigh 

Museum. 

 

 

 

 



 

Market Day drop-ins – Themed displays of handling collections to generate conversation. 

Adds activity for older residents in a safe environment. 1 or 2 a year at Eastleigh Museum. 

E.g. Old & New event in January. 

Other work with older people in care settings is done by the CELO through in-depth project 

work as part of the Trust’s Better Life Chances work. E.g. the Museums for Seniors project 

with Fernhill Court and the Alzheimer’s Society. 

Young People: 

Most work with young people’s groups is inclusion work carried out through special projects 

by the Youth Arts Officer. The area CELO also does specific young people’s projects such as 

Teen Takeover Days (eg Bursledon Windmill, Nov 2013), and runs elements of other projects 

such as ‘Entrenched’ in 2014 which engaged a group of teenagers with Eastleigh Museum 

and the Soldier’s Journey exhibition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Janet Wildman, February 2016 

 

 

 

 

37





 

Restoration of Bursledon Windmill 
 
Progress Report 
 
 
On 12 November 2015 the mill wright, Malcolm Cooper, who replaced the windshaft 
and sails for the bi-centenary in 2014, returned to investigate the operation of the mill 
which was running noisily and causing concern. This was an anticipated requirement 
following the replacement of major components and allowing time for the new timber 
to bed in. It was necessary to wait for the right wind conditions coinciding with the 
availability of the mill wright.  The noisy operation was caused by the imperfect 
meshing of the teeth on the brake wheel, the primary driving gear on the wind shaft, 
and the wallower attached to the top of the main vertical shaft which drives the mill 
machinery. Neither of these two parts had been replaced and it was confirmed that 
both have natural irregularities to be expected with heavy timber components. The 
four new pairs of steel brackets which hold the brake wheel in place on the drive 
shaft include built-in bolt clamps enabling very fine adjustment to be made to the 
angle of the wheel relative to the shaft and after some trial and error the optimum 
position was found giving significantly quieter running.  
 
There have been on-going consultations with the County Council Safety Advisor 
about the best arrangement of the proposed barrier rails and ladder access 
arrangement for access into the working cap of the Mill which will enable trained 
volunteers to participate safely in its operation. A satisfactory solution sympathetic to 
the historic character of the Mill was agreed in November 2015 and has been 
included in the current Outbuilding and Mill works contract.  The new posts and rails 
are being made with free issue salvaged oak from the County’s historic materials 
salvage store which is an appropriate use for this material and is contributing to 
keeping the works within budget. 
 
The updated lightning protection scheme for the Mill is also included in the current 
contract. It will provide continuity of protection both when the cap is being turned and 
when the sails are turning through the use of brush connections on circular 
conducting rails and bands. 
 
The construction of the new Outbuilding, which will provide an accessible toilet for 
the use of visitors and a volunteers’ room, is currently under construction. The 
contract for this and the work on the Mill was won by T. Colborn & Sons Ltd in a 
competitive tender in December 2015. So far the ground slab and drainage 
connections have been laid and the framing of the timber building is underway. The 
new building is on programme to be completed by the 14 March.  Additions to the 
brick paving and repairs to the gravel access track are also included in the contract 
works. 
 
Barnaby Wheeler 
Hampshire County Council 
12 February 2016 

Agenda Item 7

39





PROGRAMME AND PROGRESS CHART T Coleborn & Son Ltd

Unit 3.2 Central Point, Kirpal Road

Site: Bursledon Windmill Outbuilding PORTSMOUTH PO3 6FH

  Phone: 023 9282 6662 Fax: 023 9287 4201

Client: Hampshire County Council Date; 10th February 2016

Month Feb Mar

Week Commencing 1 8 15 22 29 7 14

Contract Week 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

<

No. Item of Work <

Contract Period Commencement date:  01st February 2016 <

1 Site set up & surveys Projected <

Actual Contract Completion date:   14th March 2016 <

2 Groundswork & Trench Projected <

Actual Contract period:  6 weeks <

3 Building Erection Projected <

Actual <

4 Internal Works Projected <

Actual <

5 Electrical Works Projected <

Actual <

6 Site Works Projected <

Actual <

7 Refurbishment Works Projected <

Actual <

8 Site Clear & Tidy Projected <

Actual <

41





Bursledon Windmill 

 

Business Plan 2016-19 

 

Background 

Over the last few years, in order to fix the broken windshaft, Heritage Lottery Funding grant 

assistance was sought and received.  The windshaft was replaced and the Windmill is now back in 

service.  Other remedial works were carried out as part of fitting the windshaft.  Further detailed 

work to iron out teething troubles and to improve safety in operating the mill is on going.  The HLF 

grant also paid for improvement in interpretation to make the offer at the mill more accessible and 

appealing. 

A toilet and small volunteer room, part funded by HLF, is currently being built as part of this plan, 

with additional funding from EBC.  This will enhance the attractiveness of the site both to volunteers 

towards maximising the support needed to run the site, and to schools and other groups who 

require better facilities to serve their clientele.  

With a reduction in staffing through re-organisation of the Museums Service whilst within HCC, the 

Windmill cannot move to a more sustainable position with reliance on HCC, now HCT staff alone.  It 

requires the impact of the wider development of the trust business planning to provide a stronger 

platform for development of the Windmill along with greater community involvement to more fully 

utilise the potential of the site. 

Funding proposed by HCC for the trust and EBC for the Windmill will reduce over the coming years.  

Proposed EBC funding will reduce by c45% (£26.3K to £14.5K) by 19/20.  HCC does not fund the 

Windmill directly, but rather funds HCT in order for HCT to run all of its operations.  Funding from 

HCC will reduce by 2%, 2%, 10%, 2% over the next 4 years (£3.15m to £2.66m).  HCT sees the 

strategy for future funding of the Windmill as dependent primarily on the trust’s overarching 

fundraising plans more than on local developments, as the return on investment from more global 

plans is likely to be significantly greater, than through local development.  

 

Trust Business Planning 

In order to deal with the reduced funding from its core partners as well as from local partners such 

as EBC, the trust has plans that will broaden its funding base towards providing a sustainable way 

forward for its current offer.  This approach is considered the best way to safeguard the trust’s 

current offer, and indeed to help to renew where the opportunity exists to make it more fit for 

purpose for the future.  It must do this with ambition, skill and some element of faith.   A plan that 

does not show ambition and that merely accepts the reductions in public funding as a fait accompli 

will inevitably result in reduced strength to the cultural offer.   

Agenda Item 8

43



Trust Business Planning will rely on local developments where there are strong local partnerships 

with the ambition to transform facilities.  But it must also rely on the development of more strategic 

income opportunities.  Although the trust is a new organisation, it has already embarked on 

ambitious plans to broaden its funding base as a way to safeguard its offer.  It already has reason to 

be confident that this approach will succeed as it has made strides in all of the relevant areas of its 

plan. 

  Currently, the trust is working on plans to broaden its funding base via: 

• Corporate Partners and Ambassadors  

• Better Life Chances, Happenings and Trusts and Foundations 

• Donations and Gift Aid 

• Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy 

The return on investment that can benefit the Windmill is likely to be far stronger from these 

streams and provides a plan to sustain the operation of the site.  This business plan can only 

reference these strands of work in broad terms as specific targets and successes can be 

commercially or partnership sensitive.  Nevertheless, details are provided where the information is 

public or not considered sensitive.  

 Corporate Partners and Ambassadors 

In its first year, HCT has welcomed 3 corporate partners, and 38 ambassadors.  These companies and 

individuals have given substantial amounts of money in support of the trust and its aims.  The trust 

expects this new area of funding to grow significantly over the coming years.  Partners have different 

interests but the Windmill as a unique heritage site is a prominent attraction to would be partners.  

HCT Culture Cards also provide an increasing source of income to benefit the trust and all its 

activities.      

Better Life Chances, Happenings, Trusts & Foundations 

Better Life Chances is a major strand of work for the trust.  It signals a different approach to 

engagement with targeted communities and will look to a more global view of funding and 

fundraising.  In the past 2 months, this strand of work has received 3 grants from external bodies 

(Paul Hamlyn Foundation, HIOW Community Rehabilitation Company and HLF Young Roots) totalling 

over £400,000.  All of these grants will help us to develop various venues and to fund posts.  None 

are specific to the Windmill but there are opportunities for the Windmill to benefit from these, and  

other applications can be specifically targeted to work at the mill.  These are examples of a 

fundraising strategy that can bring returns from a wider view that simply looking locally, site by site 

for the solution to the future funding equation.      

Happenings is a programme of events that will take place in various locations around the county 

over the coming years.  These events will encourage people to take part in unusual events in unusual 

places.  The events will often meet the local agendas of partner authorities and local organisations.  

Already, partnership Happenings have taken place in Winchester, Fareham and Basingstoke and a 

major festival is being planned for 2020.  These events can bring in substantial external investment 

that can benefit sites beyond the events themselves.  An example is an Escape Room that has been 



running in Fareham since before Christmas 2015 and has drawn people to a shopping destination 

that was struggling.  It has already attracted several hundred participants and taken several 

thousand pounds in income.  This is just an example of creative Initiatives that could become 

features at the mill and generate both visitor numbers and income from external sources. 

ACE Kick Start funding of c£300,000 has provided the trust with funding to develop a number of 

strands of work.  These include delivering against national and international ambitions in developing 

Big Themes, which will produce large scale exhibitions and events to benefit a range of trust venues; 

Culture Stops that will help connect museums with the wider creative economy including working 

with creative practitioners, and making retail and café improvements to a number of venues and 

Creative Collections will investigate how the collection can best be used to develop commercial 

advantage.  

 Donations and Gift Aid 

The trust will introduce new mechanisms to promote greater individual giving at sites and gift aid in 

order to increase these by almost double over the next 4 years.  These will include increased 

opportunities for customers to donate as well as better information and encouragement for 

customers to give. 

Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy 

HCT is already in receipt of a significant external grant from Heritage Lottery Fund (c£900,000 over 3 

years) to enable it, along with the wider sector, to develop inward investment from philanthropic 

sources.  HCT is awaiting a decision on further funding of c£150,000 to continue this work.  This 

project aims to put both HCT and other partners in close contacts with potential givers of major 

sources of funding.  There are various signs already that this can be an effective way of encouraging 

giving to support HCT and the wider cultural sector.  

 

Local Windmill Plans 

Volunteer Development 

HCT is planning a programme of volunteer development, that will both more closely align volunteers 

to the aims of the trust by seeking to make better use of their skills and experience, and supporting 

them in developing their customer care skills and technical skills.  This will be a trust wide initiative 

that will happen through 2016/17. 

The volunteer room will hopefully have a significant impact on the trust’s ability to attract volunteers 

as it will provide shelter and comfort that hasn’t been available on what can be a cold and desolate 

site for much of the year.   

 

 

 

45



Milling 

Contact with other milling groups has been productive in raising the possibility of skilled millers from 

other sites being willing and available to give time to Bursledon.  In order to move this on, we must 

first get the site prepared for food production.  Erica has been giving time to this in recent months 

and this will move on in 16/17.  It’s hard to say when we can mill as it depends on who can be 

recruited when, but this will be an aim in 16/17. 

 

Windmill KPIs 

The Windmill, along with other trust run facilities, is working to Key Performance Indicators in order 

to ensure that its performance is sustainable.  As funding from HCC and EBC reduces, HCT will meet 

this shortfall via the range of strategies outlined in the sections above.  The shortfall at the Windmill 

is modest compared to that of a range of other sites, and is therefore is not considered high risk.   

Local strategies such as increasing admission charges, improved retail and support from new trust 

staff such as Visitor Experiences Manager, Business Development Manager and Catering Manager 

will support development at the site. 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Visitor Nos 3,200 3,300 3,400 

Income £ £ £ 

Admissions 6,300 6,500 6,700 

Retail 400 400 500 

Total Income 6,700 6,900 7,200 

EBC 23,707 21,337 18,136 

BPC 2,672 2,672 2,672 

HCT/HCC 52,098 54,505 57,322 

Total 95,077 95,614 95,930 

Expenditure 95,077 95,614 95,930 

Nett Expenditure 0 0 0 

 

Bursledon Windmill will continue to be supported by HCT as part of its portfolio.  However it is 

important to recognise that this on going support will be enable by wider trust strategies for future 

funding rather than looking at the Windmill in isolation.  The journey to utilise the mill to its full 

potential is not straightforward and the future support of EBC and BPC along with the wider trust 

fundraising strategy will give this plan the best chance of success. 

 


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Meeting held on 10 November 2015
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Venue Plan
	5 Budget Report
	6 Schools' Service Update
	7 Restoration of Bursledon Windmill
	Bursledon Windmill Restoration Plan February 2016

	8 Bursledon Windmill Business Plan

